UNITED NATIONS

964 th Meoting

#/ZR% ECONCMIC AND SOCIAL COUNCIL Wednesiay, 24 April 1957,
' 't{é: 9 Twenty-chird Session .~ - at10.50 aum.
=5><=  OFFICIAL RECORDS = “NEW YORK

| | [+ o‘ NTENTS lacking financial resources and secondly, the Auctuations

o | Page
- Agenda item 5 ; o
Economic development of under-developed countries
. (continved) ) . . o
B General debate (Conc[uded)._. Nassneaanrtaasim ey enn 47

President: Mr. Mohammad MIR KHAN (Pakistan).

- Present: - ‘ ,
The representatives of the dollowing countries:
Argentina, Brazil, Canada, China, Dominican ’Rﬁﬁﬂ)}ic,
Egypt, Pinland, France, Greece, Indonesia, Mexico,
Netherlands, Pakistan, Poland, Union of Soviet So-~
cialist Republics, Tnited Kingdom of Great Britain
and Northern Treland, United States of America,
Yugoslavia,. =~ | | |
Observers from the following countries: .Albania,
Bulgaria, Chile, Czechoslovakia, Hungary, India, Tsrael,
Japan, Philippines, . |
The representatives of the following specialized agen-~
cies: Internatinal Labour Organisation, Food and
Agriculture Organization of the United Nations, United
Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organiza-
tion, International Civil Awiation Organization, World
Health Organization. S |

- AGENDA IYEM 5 |

. Economje developmeat of under-developed conns
~ tries (E/2930, E/2950, E/2958) (continued)
o GENERAL DEBATE (concluded) =~

1. Mr. DE FREITAS-VALLE (Brazil) said that
international economic imbalance was the result of the
low rate of domestic capital formation and the deteriora-

tion in the terms of trade of countries that produced and
exported primary commodities, The lack of balance was

aggravated by the uneven increase of preductivity in
the world. =~ | o
2., The flow of foreign capital, both public and private,
into Brazil had not been adequate, and in 185% the

country’s rate of demographic growth had begun to
mx% the increase in naiafonal fﬁrcome._ The %’gurathan

Government was, however, making an effort tp counters

act the trend towards impoverishment by the irmaple-

mentation of investment programmes in key sectors
of the economy such as transporbation, electric power,
agriculture, ports and waterways. It was not enough
however to ensure that the increase in ger caput income
should keep pace with population growth; steps
must also be taken to increase national income so that
the economic structure was ‘better balanced, That was
the ultithate goal to which all under-developed countries
should aspire as a teans of correcting the dmbalance
of the world economy. ‘ : . ‘

3. The obstacles to the attainment of world economic
stability were, fivst, the Jow .capital flow to countries

in price of primary. commodities -sold by the, under-
developed countrizs to *L: indusirialized countries. The
Economic and Social Council was -engaged in important
research in connexion with the second of the two prob-
lems, but Jittle progress had been made and the dislo-

- cation of international trade would compel it to take

more urgent action. . -

4, The situation with respect to «capital movements
was fiot at all satisfactory. Se far as the proposed
Special United Nations Fund for Economic Develop-
ment (SUNFED) was concerned, Brazil, like other
under-developed countries, had experienced one disap~
pointment after another.. The loans granted by the
International Bank for Reconstruction and Develop-
ment had also been inadequate; the Bank’s operational
methods lacked flexibility and did not assure the under-
developed countries of a steady How of capital for their.

-basic investments, The Bank should try, using better
- 1banking techniques, to oftain funds on the intérnational

money market, for example, the North American market
where savings were plentiful, and direct them to coun-
trier. where they wu.e needed. The Bauk’s latest reporis®
seemed to indicate that its lendingr capacity was rapidly
dwindling away and that its ability to grant loats would-
depend mainly on its capacity to sellits honds on the
worid money market. & = TETE o

5. Moreover,. while & ‘vonsideralde proportion of the
resgutces of the Internatiopal -Monetary Fund were
lying idle, the: balance of payments of many under-
developed -countries was deteriorating. The Fund was
paying insufficient attention #o' the economic effects
of the instability of the primary commodities. market

which represented the main source of foreign currency

- for those countries, Their difficulties weve not due ex~:

clusively to domestic monetary phenomena but were
mainly the result of fluctuations in the terms of trade.
6. He noted with satisfaction that the Fund mow
viewed the problem of the financing of economic de-
velopment sprogrammes somewhat differently. Yt more
emphasis should have beén placed on the fact that the
international tesources that could be used for that pur-
pose were still inadequate or not yet available,

7. 'He had been glad to learn from Mr, Jacobsson, the
Managing Director of the Fund, that the Fund would
give a dypamic impulse to its operations and would be
ready to help in ensuring the balanced growth of the
domestic and international trade of its members. In
that connexion, the Fund should be more practical in
its dealings with countries in the process of economic
development and sheuld rate more closely with
international bodies such as the Council and the Com-

mission on International Commodity Trade.

_1International Bank for Reconstruction and Development,
Eleventh Anmual Report, 1955-1956 (Washington, D.C,’ ,Ptrs‘t-’t
maitted 'to the Council under doctument E/2944, and “Summary
of developments in the Bank from 1 July 1956 to 31 Jannary
1957 (Washin ‘on,a(%c.), transmitted to the Council under

docament E/2944/A o
|  E/SRY94



. 48. e Economie and Social Council-—Twenty-third Session

8 He was not in agreement with the view expressed
by the Netherlands representative (960th meeting)
concerning the effects on the world economy of the
establishment of a European Common Market. As an
under-developed country, Brazil felt that the Common

Market would adversely affect its exports of primary

commodities and its capital imports. The European
countries concerned would be doing themselves a dis-
service if they overlooked the needs of the under-
developed' areas which for more than a century had
provided markets for their industrial products and were
the traditional suppliers of the primary commodities
they needed. S R
9, . Brazil had insufficient domestic capital to implement
its basic investment programmes and could not speed
up industrialization so long as it was unable to count
on an adequate volume of foreign capital, both public
and private, The Brazilian Government hoped that the
Couneil would complete its studies on industrialization
recommended at previous sessions and that those studies
would provide the basic data for the use by Brazil of
scarce resources for industrial puiposes. |

10, By co-ordinating efforts at the current session, the
Council would. be able at the twenty-fourth session to
take effective action to attain the common goul, namely
the establishment of a more just economic balance
among mations, o C L
11, Mr. ASMAUN {Indonesia) said that the develop-
ment of the under-developed countries raised two fun-
damental and interrelated problems, ramely, the supply
of ‘adequate capital and the training of skilled techni-
cians, administrators and workers. He wished to dwell

- particularly on the second of those problems.
12, The United Nations and the specialized agencies

had vndoubtedly devoted a good deal of attention to the
maiter’ under -the : technical assistance ' programmes;

but those programmes- could not accomplish miracles

and the main effort: must come from the under-develcped
countries themselves.. Yet, without underestimating the
results achieved, it must be admitted that the initial
hopes-oi the under-developed countries had not been
completely fulfilled. Those countries had not yet man-
aged to place their economies on' a sufficiently. solid
foundation to neutralize the effects of fluctuations in
world prices and they stiil faced financial difficulties.

13, The three reports before the Council—on indus-
trialization (E/2958), land veform  (E/2930) and co-

operatives (E/2950) respectively—dealt with :certain

aspects of .the question of training the administrative
and technical personnel needed by the under-developed
countries, but they did little more than pose the problem,

and ‘experience . showed that it would have to be ap-

proached from a différent point of view, When the tech-
nical assistance programmes began, it had been thought
that much could be done by engaging foreign experts
who would quickly diagnose the ills of the under-
developed countries and suggest remedies. It had been
recognized, however, that the problem was too complex
to be solved in that way and 2 number of technical
assistatice experts had returned from their missions
disappointed and even ' resentful towards countries
to which they had gone full of enthysiasm.

14. - The Indonesian delegation had accordingly noted
with special interest the suggestion made by Mr, Lester
B. Pearson, the Canadian Secretary of State for Ex-
térnal Affairs, and endorsed by Mr, ‘Hammarskjold
in an address at McGill University, Montreal, almost

a year previously; in the course of that address the

- Secretary-General hdd poirited out that lack of trained

administrative and technical personnel, rather than lack
of capital, was holding back the development. of the
under-developed countries, and had recommended the
establishment of an international civil service, for quali-

~ fied men and wornen of any nationality who were ready

to make their careers in the under-developed countries,
In his delegation’s opinion, the suggestion deserved
serious consideration. It would make it possible to avoid
many of the difficulties encountered in the past in the
recruitment. of experts, -

15. At the same time, it was apparent that the ‘contri- -

. bution that foreign experts by themselves could make

to an under-developed country’s economic progress was
limited, The real need was to equip the under-developed
countries with competent local staff. For that reason,
the international civil service should be combined with
an international training institute, the purpose of which
would be to train nationals of the under-developed coun- .
tries to work as technical and administrative experts
in their own countries. The institute could be financed
by grants and endowments from Governments and pri-
vate foundations. His delegation did not intend to
submit a draft resolution on the subject at the current
stage but would be grateful if the Secretary-General.
could prepare a paper for the Council at the twenty-
fourth session setting out his proposal for an interna-
tional civil service in more concrete terms, taking into
account the possibility of the simultaneous establishment
of an international training centre, and having du¢ re-

- gard to the legal and practical aspects that must be

considered, . : ,

16. With regard to the European Customs Union and
Free Trade Area referred to by the Netherlands repre-
sentative (960th meeting), he said that the 'decisions

. taken by the Western European countries continued

to cause serious concern in Indonesia. His delegation
of course recognized the right of any State to decide
on the most appropriate economic structure for itself
and sympathized with- the motives that prompted the

- Western European countries to form an economic

union. While it realized ‘that integration might ulti-
mately contribute to a higher worid level of production, .
his delegation feared that it might develop into a neo-’
mercantilist system, which would adversely affect coun-'
tries outside the Common Market area and the overseas
territories associated with it. ST RS
17. The Common Market might tend to widen the
gap between the under-developed and the developed
countries as it was probable that, while world produc-
tion would increase, the share of the under-developed

- countries would decrease. In view of the participation
- of the overseas territories, there was reason to believe
~ that the demand for the raw materials produced in the’

under-developed ' ‘cottritries would in the long run de-
dline rather than increase, with a consequent deterio-
ration in their terms of trade. ~ e

18. The only effective counter-measure would be an
increased programme of financial assistance to the
under-developed countries. Indonesia Hoped that.the
industrialized countries would recognize the meed for
measures along those lines to ensure that the establishe.
ment of the Common Market did not lead to an aggra~
vation of the already great disequilibrium between the -

~developed and under-developed countries.

19. Mr. FARUQI (Pakistan), emphasizing the ur-
gency and importance of economic development in the
under-developed countries, said that the speed with



964th Meeting—24 April 1957 | e

which studies of industrialization were being conducted
should be accelerated. Unfortunately the report before
the Council (E/2958) offered little that deserved spe-
cial consideration. It was worth recalling that economic
development meant a balanced development of agricul-
. ture and industry, The under-developed countries must
be raised to a level where they could have an identity
of interest with the economically developed countries,

Otherwise, it would be impossible to work out common .

policies which would ‘benefit the world as a whole.

20. The economy of the under-developed countries
was based on agriculture but, everr in that field, with-
out the complementary strength derived from industry,
they had lagged far behind the other countries. Many
- of them had had to face food shortages and famine con-
ditiohs because they lacked the resources to provide
against such emergencies, Left to themselves, they

could neither look to the development of their agricul-

ture noir implement their programmes of industrial
- development, - R

21. The external assistance they needed would not
produce lasting results unless it was provided with
great speed and on an adequate scule. Land reform
alone would not improve the position of the agrarian
sector unless there was substantial industrial develop-
ment to absorb the surplus rural population. In general,
there was no shortage of matipower in the under-
developed countries but there was a shortage of savings
that could increase capital formation. In his delegation’s
view it was urgently necessary to establish industries
in the under-developed countries which could use the
available local raw materials, and to develop the tech-
nical and maanagerijal skills needed for that purpose.
Once a certain level of industrial development had been

achieved, it would be possible to evolve and implement

a development programme taking into account both

agriculture and industry. From the human point of

view, unless there was a substantial and speedy im-

provement in the level of living, the pecple would not

have the mental attitude necessary to make the best use

of the capital and technical assistance provided to
further the developmant of their countries.

22. ,In order to 2ccelerate the rate of development, a
special unit should be set up under the auspices of the

Economic and Social Council to keep under constant

review the progress of industrial development in the
- under-developed countries. The unit would also give
ddvice on planning to countries requesting it, and ar-
range for the training of the technical and administra-
tive staff required for the establishment of the planned
industries. _ , o

23. If the under-developed countries did not receive
continuing assistance, the imbalance in their economies

would increase and it would be more costly and diffi-

cult to correct it. He trusted that the economically
developed countries would continue to give liberal
assistance. -

24, With regard to land reform, he felt that a longer
interval between reports would permit a better assess-
ment of the progress achieved. |
25." The study on co-operatives prepared for the Coun~
cil (E/2950) dealt admirably with the theoretical as-
pects of the problem. What was required, however,
was the establishment of regional co-operative schools
in the under-developed countries, particularly in the
region covered by the Economic Commission for Asia
and the Far East. He believed that it would be possible
to establish: such an institution in Pakistan,

26. ' The Secretariat might be asked to submit annually
a paper giving a general picture of economic develop-
ment in the under-developed countries, A report on
the progress achieved and the failures and the reasons
for them would be useful and instructive. To provide
such a report, it would be necessary to establish a per-
manent unit on industrialization, The Secretariat would
continue to make special studies from time to time, but
failure to take stock regularly of economic progress in
the under-developed countries might create a false sense
of security and essential problems might be neglected
while less important questions were studied,” He hoped
that the economically developed countries represented
on the Council would support his suggestion,

27, Mr. ROUX (International Labour Organisation)
said that the report on co-operatives (E{ZQSO) had
been prepared jointly by the secretariats of the United
Nations, the Food and Agriculture Organization.
(FAO) and the International Labour Organisation
(1I1.O), chapter 2 being the work of the International
Labour Office. Some representatives had criticized that
chapter on the grounds that it was inadequate and the-
oretical, He felt he should make it clear that, as the
report had had to be edited, the chapter, in its final form,
was a mere statement of ideas from which all the exam-
ples supporting the ohservations made had been re-
moved. The authors had also been accusod of not
having been critical enough and of not having made it
sufficiently clear that co-operation could not prosper

- without freedom. The subject chosen was forms of

assistance which could be provided by the public authori-

ties to co-operatives and it had been considered as one

aspect of the more general subject of econoniic develop-
ment, which ‘was of particular importance to the under-
developed ¢ountries, In those countries, it was generally
recognized that it was the Government’s responsibility
to lend vigorous support to co-opsrative activities, As
a final reply to the criticisms made, he read out para-
graph 13 of the report, which expressly stated that the
co-operative movement was essentially popular “in
character. - o S
28. Outlining recent ILO activities in the co-operative
field, he said that the Sixth Conference of American
States members of the ILO had adopted two resolutions,
one on principles of general co-operative policy and one
on future ILO activities in that field in collaboration
with other organizations. L

29.. In connexion with the training of staff, the ILO,
in co-operation with FAO and the United Nations, had
organized a co-operative training course under the
auspices of the Danish Government from 1 August to
12 September 1956 in Denmark. In' November and De-
cember 1956, a four-week course had been given at
Mysore, India, on the role of co-operatives in regard
to small-scale industries and handicrafts. Consultations
were in progress with FAO and the Commission for

Technical Co-operation in Africa South of the Sahara

with regard to the organization of another course in

the near future, Many technical assistance projects were
~ also concerned with matters relating to co-operatives.

30. After the report on Progress in Land Refarﬂ
(E/2930) had been written early in 1956 the Interna~

tional Conference had adopted a recommendation on

vocational training in agriculture. The conference had
already undertaken a preliminary examination of the
question of living and working conditions of indigenous

populations, which were mainly rural and agricultural,

in the independent countries.



50 Economie and Social Council—Twenty-third Session

31. Finally, he assured the Council that the ILO in-

tended to continue its activities in those fields in co-
operationn with the United Nations and FAQ. .

32, Mr, DE SEYNES (Under-Secretary for Eco-
nomic and Social Affairs) thanked those representatives
who had expressed their appreciation of the reports the
Segretariat had prepared for the Council. R

33, With regard to fand refortn, he noted that the
members of the Council appeared to agree that the
periodical reports on land reform might usefully be
published at longer intervals, a wiew similar to that
expressed by the Secretary-General at the Council’s
twenty-second session. A general report might be pre-
pared only every five, six or seven years. The report
would continue to be the joint responsibility of the
various organizations concerned and, as the FAO rep-

- resentative had recommended, might deal with imple-

mentation rather than with legislation. Members of the
Council also appeared to desire further monographs
on various land reform problents, Responsibility for

such special studies should be clearly divided among
the various organizations concerned, The Food and -

Agriculture Organization should be responsible for
all -questions relating to technigues of agrarian reform
and its effects on production, and the ILO for problems
affecting rural labour. The United Nations Secretariat
might undertake a study of the relationship between
land reform and industrialization, with a view to con-
sidering the possibility of using the compensation of-
fered to landowners to further industrial development.
He conld not at the current stage give any wunder-
taking with regard to such a study and felt that the
Secretariat should be left free to decide how much
time would be required. He believed that the repre-
géntatives of the othet organizations would also wel-
come any latitude the Council might allow them. Some
latitude was essential if the reportc submitted to the
Council were to be useful and based on thorough study.
34. He did net believe that any useful purpose would
be served by a further general study on co-operatives.
The »reg)ont before the Council (E/2950) supplemented
the 1954

(E/2524)2, which was still applicable. The ILO and
FAQO representatives had given information -on their
ofganizations’ fields of activity. The United Nations

- oonoenirated its research principally on the relationship

between co-operatives and community development.
It.was desirable that the question should be considered
in connexion with the study of various sectors, such as
heusing, in which co-operatives could play an important

part, In any case, the United Nations could act most

effectively through technical assistance.

35. With regard to industrialization, he pointed out
that the report- (E/2958) dealt only with projects
covered by special appropriations. A project on plan-
ning or programming was under study in the Statistical
Office of the United Nations. The purpose of the study
was 1o <determinie minimum statistical machinery re-
guired for planning at the various stages of develop-
ment. It had been found that planning was hampered in
many under-developed countries by the lack of statistical

information, Steps had been taken at the ninth session -

of the ‘Statistical Commission to recruit regional statis-
ticians, Other subjects might be studied but that was

the most essential and urgent point at the current time,

study, Rural Progress through Co-operatives .

36. Commenting on the Netherlands representative’s
suggestion concerning the establishment of o general
information centre available to all countries and the
possibility of undertaking studies on trends in certain
markets, he said that he sympathized with the inten-
tion underlying the suggestion and felt that the infor-
mation possibilities, the development of which was
perhaps the essential function of an international sec-
retariat, had not been fully explored. Nevertheless, the
proposed studies might impose a very heavy burden
upon the Secretariat. The Food and Agriculture Organ-
ization and its Committee on Commodity Problems
were studying technical problems in ¥hat field but when
the question of information had been raised in the Coun-
cii’s Commission on International Commodity Trade, it
had not been received enthusiastically, He could not give
any undertaking in that connexion but thought that it
might be useful to consider what could be done along
those lines. , o .

37. He assured the Council that the Secretariai was
not neglecting the study of public enterprises and hoped
that it could be undertaken in the near future, He also
pointed out to the representative of Canada that the
programme presented by the Sectretariat took fully into
account consultations with under-developed countries
and experience gained in the tethnical assistance pro-
grammes. The programme was in fact considered to be -
complementary to the technical assistance programmes.

38. With regard to the Indonesian representative’s
suggestion, he said that the Secretariat might submit
for the Council’s twenty-fourth session, a document on
the problem of establishing an internaticnal civil service,
It would also be possible for it to submit a few com-~
ments on the question of establishing an institute for
the training of national experts, but.he questioned
whether it was necessary or desirable to wait until such
an institute was established before carrying out the pro-
posal to organize a corps of international experts on
the lines suggested by the Secretary-General in his
address at McGill University, :
39. Moreover, the preparation of an annual repori
on the progress of economic plans in the wunder-
developed countries, as suggested by the representative
of Pakistan, would be a difficult task. He felt that the
development of the various plans could more usefully
be studied within the framework of the regional
commissions, , |
40. The PRESIDENT said that if the Council agreed,
the Secretariat would prepare for the Council at its
twenty-fourth session the document requested by the
representative of Indonesia. | )

It was so agreed. o S
41, In reply to a question by Mr. ANIS (Egypt),
Mr., DE SEYNES (Under-Secretary for Eco%c
and Social Affairs) said that the study on the Middle
East, which would be published shortly, would deal
with three countries and would subsequently be ex-
tended to include other countries. In regard to Aftica,
funds had only recently been -obtained and the prepaca-
tory phase of gathering information was about to begin.
42. The PRESIDENT suggested that the general
debate should be closed and the question referred to
the Economic Committeee, on the understanding that
the latter would not re-open the general debate,

1t was so decided. : _—

2 Urited Nations publication, Sales No.: 10541LB2.

Printed in U.S.A.

. Thewneeting roset 1245pm,
o  S-13361June 1957--2.250





